y · 1 g/21 FILE SID J. WHITE IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA FEB 26 1997 CLERN SUPREME COURT THE FLORIDA BAR, аy - Chief Debuty Clerit Case No. 88,180 Complainant, [TFB Case No. 96-30,098 (18C)] v.

HENRY J. MARTOCCI,

Respondent.

THE FLORIDA BAR'S INITIAL BRIEF

JOHN F. HARKNESS, JR. Executive Director The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2300 (904) 561-5600 ATTORNEY NO. 123390

JOHN T. BERRY Staff Counsel The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2300 (904) 561-5600 ATTORNEY NO. 217395

AND

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 26, 1996, the Eighteenth Judicial Circuit Grievance Committee "C" found probable cause against respondent for violating Rules Regulating The Florida Bar 4-8.4(c) for engaging in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation; and 4-8.4(d) for engaging in conduct in connection with the practice of law that is prejudicial to the administration of justice, including to knowingly, or through callous indifference, disparage, humiliate, or discriminate against litigants, jurors, witnesses, court personnel, or other lawyers on any basis, including, but not limited to, on account of race, ethnicity, gender, religion, national origin, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, age, socioeconomic status, employment, or physical characteristic.

The bar's complaint was filed on May 31, 1996. On June 20, 1996, The Honorable Cynthia G. Angelos, Circuit Judge, was appointed as referee in this matter. The parties stipulated to having all proceedings conducted before Judge Angelos in Martin County, Florida, and the final evidentiary hearing was set for November 8, 1996.

Respondent submitted his answers to the bar's complaint on June 25, 1996. On June 27, 1996, the bar served written interrogatories on respondent and served Requests for Admission

on respondent on July 2, 1996. Respondent served his Response to Request for Admissions and Answers to Interrogatories on July 31, 1996. On October 17, 1996 and October 31, 1996, respectively, Eric M. Turner and Frances R. Brown filed notices of appearance as co-bar counsel.

A pretrial telephone conference was conducted on October 29, 1996 and the final evidentiary hearing was held on November 8, 1996. The referee requested the parties each submit proposed referee reports for her consideration. The findings of fact in the reports prepared by the bar and respondent were substantially similar. The referee submitted her report on December 5, 1996. Although the referee found that respondent had engaged in the conduct described in the findings of fact, she also found several mitigating factors. It was the referee's finding that it had not been proven by clear and convincing evidence that respondent's conduct rose to a level of a violation of Rules 4-8.4(c) and 4-8.4(d).

The Board of Governors of The Florida Bar considered the Report of Referee at its January, 1997 meeting and voted to seek review of the referee's conclusion that respondent was not guilty of violating Rules 4-8.4(c) and 4-8.4(d). The bar served its Petition for Review on January 24, 1997. This Initial Brief is submitted in support of the bar's petition.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

In April, 1995 respondent represented the former wife in <u>Newman V. Newman</u>, Case No. 90-02457-FD-J, Eighteenth Judicial Circuit, Brevard County, Florida, concerning child custody and support issues [Ans. 1; Adm. 3]. Attorney J. Scott Lanford represented the former husband [Ans. 1; Adm. 3]. Mr. Lanford scheduled the deposition of Dr. Bonnie Slade, Ph.D., a licensed psychologist, for April 24, 1995 at 8:45 a.m. at Dr. Slade's office in Palm Bay, Florida, concerning the <u>Newman</u> case [Ans. 2; Adm. 41. Mr. Lanford also faxed to respondent's office on Saturday, April 22, 1995, a day when respondent's office was closed, a notice of the taking of the deposition of a Dr. Whitacre at Mr. Lanford's office at 6:30 p.m. on the following Monday evening, April 24, 1995 [T, pp. 27, 58, 121].

On the morning of April 24, 1995, both Mr. Lanford and respondent were present for Dr. Slade's deposition and respondent's client and her new husband were also in attendance [Ans. 2; Adm. 41. Dr. Slade's deposition was reported by Stephanie McGraw, Registered Professional Reporter [Ans. 3; Adm. 51. Ms. McGraw used stenographic notes and a tape recorder to report Dr. Slade's deposition which lasted approximately 15 minutes [Ans. 3; Adm. 5]. After Dr. Slade indicated that she had to terminate the deposition, it was determined her deposition

would be continued at a later time. [Ans. 4; Adm. 6]. After Dr. Slade left the deposition room, Mr. Lanford informed respondent of Dr. Whitacre's deposition scheduled for that evening [Ans. 4; Adm. 8]. Mr. Lanford told respondent, "6:30 in my office. Be there. Thank you" [Ans. 4; Adm. 8; T, p. 117]. Mr. Lanford and respondent then left the deposition room [Ans. 4; Adm. 91.

Outside the deposition room, respondent approached Mr. Lanford and uttered an obscenity, "F--- you" [Ans. 5; Adm. 10]. Mr. Lanford responded, "I'm sorry, what did you say?" and respondent stated, "A--hole," whereupon Mr. Lanford said to respondent, "Say it again", and respondent uttered "A--hole" again [Adm. 11; T, p. 122]. The court reporter's tape recorder registered portions of this confrontation between respondent and Mr. Lanford. The tape recorder did not pick up the words "F--you" but did pick up respondent's utterance of the term "A--hole" on several occasions [Ans. 5; Bar Ex. 73. Dr. William Edward Riebsame, a psychologist working in the same office as Dr. Slade, testified before the grievance committee that he had witnessed the confrontation in the hallway of Dr. Slade's office between the two attorneys, that respondent said something like "you are a f---ing a--hole," and that during the confrontation, respondent either pushed or pointed into Mr. Lanford's chest [Bar Ex. 1, p. 661.

When the court reporter, Ms. McGraw, and Mr. Lanford were in the parking lot subsequent to Dr. Slade's deposition, respondent called out to Mr. Lanford, "Hey looney, when did you send the subpoena" or "Hey looney, when did you get the subpoena", or words to that effect [T, pp. 32, 86, 123-1241. The bar charged respondent with violating R. Regulating Fla. Bar 4-8.4(d) for knowingly using language to disparage and/or humiliate another lawyer.

testified that just before Whitacre Ms. McGraw the deposition began on the evening of April 24, 1995, respondent pointed his finger at her and said to his client, "I'm going to get that woman if it's the last thing I do" [T, pp. 70-711. Also during the Whitacre deposition taken on the evening of April 24, 1995, respondent objected to Ms. McGraw's presence as the court reporter [Ans. 7; T, p. 102]. Respondent stated on the record of the Whitacre deposition his contention that Ms. McGraw and Mr. Lanford had completely fabricated a purported portion of the Slade deposition taken earlier that morning [Ans. 71. He stated on the record during the Whitacre deposition that he had never made the statement "F--- you", or words to that effect earlier that day [Ans. 8]. Respondent further stated on the record during Dr. Whitacre's deposition that Ms. McGraw had notarized what he believed to be a "partially false and fraudulent transcript of statements never made" [Ans. 7; Adm. 16; Bar Ex.

2]. At the final hearing, respondent testified that he was referring to statements never made during the course of the deposition but which were included in the Slade transcript as prepared by the court reporter [T, pp. 110-11].

On April 26, 1995, respondent filed in the <u>Newman</u> case Petitioner's Supplemental Objections to the Filing or Use of the Deposition of Bonnie Slade, Ph.D. [Adm. 18]. In that document, at stated that a portion of paragraph four, respondent the transcript of the deposition of Bonnie Slade, Ph.D., namely lines 13 through 20 on page 17, was "falsely, fraudulently and maliciously fabricated by the court reporter acting in concert with counsel for the Former Husband" [Adm. 19; Bar Ex. 3]. At the final hearing, respondent testified that he was referring to the court reporter having included in the Slade transcript those matters which occurred after the deposition had concluded [T, pp]. 110-111]. Respondent testified that he believed Mr. Lanford advised the court reporter, Ms. McGraw, to include the comments made between the two attorneys after the termination of the Slade deposition in the transcript which was to be presented to the trial court [T, pp. 102-104].

Respondent, in his grievance filed against Mr. Lanford, represented that at no time on April 24, 1995, either in the deposition room or outside thereof, did he utter the obscenities

reflected on page 17, lines 13-20, of Dr. Slade's transcript [T, p. 1001. Further, prior to the grievance committee hearing in this matter, respondent denied saying "A--hole" to Mr. Lanford on April 24, 1995, although the tape recording made by the court reporter, Stephanie McGraw, reflects respondent said that word at least twice [Ans. 10; Adm. 21; T, pp. 111-114]. Respondent acknowledged that he said "F--- You" to Mr. Lanford [Ans. 10; Adm. 22; T, p. 951. Respondent testified during the final hearing that he meant to convey that such language had not taken place during the deposition but thereafter [T, pp. 100-101, 111-1121.

Respondent directed disparaging remarks to opposing counsel, Lanford [Ans. 11], and accused a court reporter of Mr. fabricating a transcript and engaging in an improper notarization [Ans. 121. Also, respondent accused an attorney of conspiring with a court reporter to fabricate a transcript [Ans. 131. Respondent maintained prior to and at the final hearing that the court reporter and Mr. Lanford combined efforts to create an impression that the profane language he used had been spoken during the deposition of Dr. Slade when it had been spoken after the deposition and that Ms. McGraw could not have heard him tell Lanford "F--- You" or have obtained it from the tape Mr. recording so she must have obtained it from a conversation with Mr. Lanford [Adm. 10; T, pp. 103-104]. At the time respondent

submitted his written objection to the Slade transcript in the Newman case, he had not heard the audio tape of the Slade deposition and had no proof to substantiate his allegations that the court reporter had fabricated testimony [T, pp. 108-109, 1111. The bar charged that respondent's unsubstantiated accusations aqainst Ms. McGraw and Mr. Lanford constituted conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice under R. Regulating Fla. Bar 4-8.4(d) because his remarks were rendered in court documents and were intended to disparage or humiliate the court reporter and a fellow member of the bar. The bar also charged respondent with making a misrepresentation to the bar in violation of R. Regulating Fla. Bar 4-8.4(c) when he denied uttering a disparaging remark where an audio device recorded him doing so on two occasions. Respondent denied that allegation and the referee did not find respondent had violated Rule 4-8.4(c).

Respondent testified that at the time he made the comments to Mr. Lanford and took action, he was under stress because of a medical condition and the late scheduled deposition conflicted with time he needed to spend with his girlfriend's sick mother $[T, _{PP}. 120-121]$. The referee found these to be mitigating factors. Respondent also testified that Mr. Lanford accused him of being a liar and conspiring with his client to deny return of the children to Mr. Newman [T, pp. 105-107]. In reviewing the circumstances of respondent's actions, the referee also found

а

that Mr. Lanford's conduct was a mitigating factor. The referee specifically stated that she did not condone respondent's actions in this case. However, it was the referee's recommendation, based upon the totality of the circumstances and the mitigating factors present, that respondent be found not guilty of violating the rules charged in the bar's complaint.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The bar seeks to challenge the referee's conclusion that respondent's use of the obscenities, "F--- you" and "A--hole", directed toward opposing counsel, and his subsequent actions against the court reporter and opposing counsel, did not violate Rules 4-8.4(c) and 4-8.4(d). The facts are not in dispute and explicitly show that respondent said the obscenities to opposing counsel after a deposition had concluded in a litigated civil Respondent's inappropriate language and the subsequent case. publishing of his opinion that the court reporter and opposing counsel conspired to fabricate a deposition transcript constituted a breach of Rule 4-8.4(d). Such conduct was clearly intended to disparage and humiliate another attorney and a court reporter and as such, undermines the public's perception of the officers in our system of justice and, thereby, prejudices the administration of justice. Further, it is apparent from the evidence and testimony presented at the final hearing that respondent initially denied to the parties concerned and to the grievance committee that he used any expletives during his confrontation with opposing counsel, despite at least a portion of the comments being reflected in the court reporter's tape recording. Respondent's actions in that regard constituted a misrepresentation and a violation of Rule 4-8.4(C).

While the referee found there were some mitigating factors present in this case, they were not sufficient to negate a finding of misconduct. The bar submits that as an officer of the court, respondent was obligated to maintain the highest level of integrity and professionalism regardless of the surrounding circumstances. At best, respondent's angry outburst and use of profane language to another attorney was unbecoming of a member of the bar; at worst, such conduct evidences respondent's lack of self-control and a complete disregard for his Oath of Admission. This kind of unprofessional and inappropriate behavior should not be tolerated by any court or other members of the bar.

Prior to the referee's recommendation of a not quilty finding, the bar presented arguments as to the proper discipline in this case. The bar submits that case law and the Florida Standards for Imposing Lawyer Sanctions support a public Respondent has taken little responsibility for his reprimand. actions and instead seeks to have opposing counsel and personal circumstances shoulder the blame. He refused to take responsibility for accusing the court reporter of fabricating testimony. A public reprimand is necessary to show other members of the bar that use of profane language in the practice of law is not acceptable behavior and making unfounded accusations of fraud against court personnel (a court reporter) should not be tolerated. In addition, due to respondent's apparent lack of

self-control, the bar submits that respondent's referral to an anger/stress management program is warranted.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE REFEREE REACHED ERRONEOUS CONCLUSIONS FROM THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND EVIDENCE PRESENTED THEREBY CAUSING AN INCORRECT AND INADEQUATE FINDING OF NOT GUILTY.

It is undisputed that respondent confronted attorney J. Scott Lanford after a deposition had concluded in a litigated civil case, <u>Newman v. Newman</u>. The exchange went as follows:

Both attorneys left the room and Respondent approached Mr. Lanford from the rear, put his hand on his shoulder and said to him "F--- You", whereupon Mr. Lanford responded "I'm sorry, what did you say?", and Respondent responded "A-- hole", whereupon Mr. Lanford said to Respondent "Say it again.", and Respondent uttered "A-- hole" again. The court reporter had allowed her tape recorder to continue, but did not pick up the word "F--- You." The tape recorder did, however, pick up the term "A-- hole." [RR, p. 2].

It is clear from the testimony presented at the final hearing that respondent was angry with Mr. Lanford because of the late deposition notice and from prior interactions between the attorneys in the <u>Newman</u> case [T, pp. 43-45, 58, 106-107, 114-118]. Reluctantly, respondent eventually acknowledged that he confronted Mr. Lanford with the obscenities, "F--- you" and "A--hole". However, respondent is not apologetic toward Mr. Lanford based on his perception of Mr. Lanford's actions in the "highly contested" <u>Newman</u> case. Respondent apparently does not consider

calling a fellow attorney an "A--hole" and telling him "F--- You" to be unprofessional [T, pp. 105-1081. Rather, respondent only appears to be sorry that he was unable to control himself on that day [T, pp. 105, 108].

The referee found that Mr. Lanford's conduct was а mitigating factor [RR, p. 41, although it is not clearly specified what actions or statements by Mr. Lanford the referee believed may have contributed to respondent's angry outburst and use of obscenities. Also in mitigation, the referee pointed to respondent's physical and mental health [RR, p. 41. However, respondent testified that his medical condition began in or around October, 1994 and was under control by the end of 1994 and that his confrontation with Mr. Lanford occurred toward the end of April, 1995 [T, pp. 120-121]. Further, respondent did not specify the mental health problem he suffered. He was merely upset at Mr. Lanford for scheduling a deposition with little notice as it conflicted with the time he wanted to spend with his girlfriend's sick mother [T, p. 121; RR, p. 3]. The bar would point out that although under the Florida Standards for Imposing Lawyer Sanctions an attorney's personal or emotional problems is a mitigating factor [Standard 9.23(c)], the conduct of opposing counsel is not. While these circumstances may be sufficient to mitigate the level of discipline to be imposed, they do not negate respondent's misconduct, particularly where the referee

found respondent had engaged in the conduct as charged by the bar. This holds true in other similar attorney discipline actions.

In The Florida Bar v. Wasserman, 675 So. 2d 103 (Fla. 1996), the attorney was disciplined in two separate cases for his personal behavior. In one case, the attorney's angry outburst in a court proceeding included shouting criticisms at the judge, waving his arms and banging on a table. The attorney also stated his intent to advise his client to defy the court's order. After considering as mitigation that the attorney admitted his conduct inappropriate and indicated he would not behave in that was manner again, the referee recommended that the attorney be given a 60 day suspension in that case. In the second case, after receiving an unfavorable response over the telephone from a judge's assistant, the attorney said to the assistant, "YOU little motherf----; you and that judge, that motherf----- son of a b----." The referee recommended a six month suspension in that case. On appeal in the first case, the attorney maintained that because his outburst had occurred during an emotionally charged custody case, his behavior should be considered "minor misconduct". This Court found that even though the attorney's conduct occurred during a heated custody battle, the egregious behavior was not minor misconduct particularly in light of the attorney's prior disciplinary history. The Court ordered a six

month suspension in the first case which was to run consecutively with the six month suspension in the second case.

In a federal case, Carroll V. Jauues, 926 F.Supp. 1282 (E.D. Tex.), an attorney was being sued by a former client. During a deposition of the attorney, he used an abusive tone and shouted profanities at the plaintiff's counsel. The court found there was no adequate basis to sanction the attorney under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure so it used its inherent power to regulate the conduct of parties before it. The court found the attorney's language toward the plaintiff's counsel to be "extremely offensive and abusive." The attorney used harassment, extreme fatigue and hypoglycemia as defenses. The court rejected these defenses but considered such in mitigation. As а deterrence to further abusive conduct, the court fined the attorney a total of \$7,000 which included \$500 for each time he insulted the plaintiff's counsel with specific profanities, \$1,000 for threatening the plaintiff's counsel with bodily harm, and \$1,000 for each time the attorney used a string of profanities.

What is also important to consider in this case, which the referee did not adequately assess, is that respondent initially denied using the obscene language toward Mr. Lanford. At the beginning of Dr. Whitacre's deposition on the evening of April

24, 1995, respondent stated his objection to the court reporter's presence and stated that she had "notarized what I contend to be and will ultimately prove to be a partially false and fraudulent transcript of statements never made." [Bar Ex. 2; RR, p. 31. When Mr. Lanford inquired of respondent whether he had said "F---you" earlier that day, respondent stated "Never made." [Bar Ex. 2]. In Petitioner's Supplemental Objections to the Filing or Use of the Deposition of Bonnie Slade, Ph.D. filed by respondent in the <u>Newman</u> case on or about April 26, 1995, respondent stated his contention:

. . . a portion of the transcript, namely lines 1.3 through **20** on page 17 of the transcript have been falsely, fraudulently and maliciously fabricated by the court reporter acting in concert with counsel for the Former Husband. Furthermore, certain indications in the transcript did not occur and certain statements were not made at the times set forth in the transcript. [Bar Ex. **3**; RR, p. 3].

In a letter to the court reporter, Ms. McGraw, dated May 16, 1995, the respondent stated, with regard to Dr. Slade's deposition, "you and I each know to a degree of moral certainty that the purported dialogue between Scott Lanford and I as shown on lines 13 through 20 of page 17 of the transcript of the Slade deposition simply did not take place" [Bar Ex. 6]. In the grievance respondent filed against Mr. Lanford, respondent represented that at no time on April 24, 1995, either in the deposition room or outside thereof, did he utter the obscenities

"F--- Me" or "A--hole" as reflected on page 17, lines 13-20, of Dr. Slade's transcript [Bar Ex. 8; T, p. 100]. The referee's report, at page 3, regarding respondent's grievance against Mr. Lanford, is incorrect in that the report states that in his grievance respondent represented that at no time on April 24, 1995, either in the deposition room or outside thereof, did he utter the term "F--- Me." However, respondent never made that distinction [Bar Ex. 81. Rather, in his written documents to the grievance committee, respondent represented that the entire dialogue set forth in the Slade transcript never took place. Further, during the grievance committee hearing in this matter, respondent never clarified to the committee what profanities he Respondent admitted during the final hearing that he may used. have given the committee the impression that he never called Mr. Landford "A--hole" [T, pp. 111-113]. It is apparent that respondent did not fully acknowledge or clarify his use of the language "F--- you" and "A--hole" directed to Mr. Lanford until after the grievance committee found probable cause against him [Ans. 5; Adm. 11]. Respondent testified at the final hearing that in his initial denials he meant to convey that his use of the language "F--- you" and A--hole" did not take place during the course of the Slade deposition [T, pp. 97, 101, 110-112, 123, 127]. However, respondent waited until the referee proceedings to attempt to clarify his intentions [Ans. 8, 9 13; Adm. 12, 15, 19-21, 23, 25]. Clearly, respondent's denials to the grievance

committee and others of his use of the obscenities directed toward Mr. Lanford constitute a misrepresentation and support a finding of guilt as to Rule 4-8.4(c).

The other issue on which the referee reached incomplete or erroneous conclusions concerns respondent's actions toward Mr. Lanford and the court reporter, Ms. McGraw, subsequent to the confrontation on April 24, 1995. On the record at the deposition of Dr. Whitacre the evening of April 24, 1995, respondent stated his contention that Mr. Lanford and Ms. McGraw had completely fabricated portions of a transcript of the Slade deposition taken earlier in the day [Bar Ex. 2]. Respondent also called into question, on the record, Ms. McGraw's impartiality [Bar Ex. 2]. Further, respondent published in a court document filed in the Newman case his opinion that Mr. Lanford and Ms. McGraw had acted in concert to fabricate the transcript of Dr. Slade's deposition [Bar Ex. 3]. It was respondent's supposition that Mr. Lanford had a conversation with Ms. McGraw in which he told her what to put in the transcript regarding respondent's confrontation with Lanford Mr. after the Slade deposition [T, pp. 103-104]. Respondent had not heard such a conversation between Ms. McGraw and Mr. Lanford nor had he even listened to the audio tape made by the court reporter prior to making such a bold accusation that Mr. Lanford and Ms. McGraw had fabricated the transcript [T, pp. 104, 108-109]. Respondent's accusations of a conspiracy between

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