IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

097 44

THE FLORIDA BAR,

Complainant,

Case No: 88,180 [TFB Case No. 96-30,098 (18C

V.

HENRY J. MARTOCCI,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF

✓ James R. Dressler Attorney for Respondent 1 10 Dixie Lane Cocoa Beach, Florida 32931 Telephone : (407) 783-2714 Attorney No. 0020.536

	Page(s)

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Referee's findings of fact and conclusions in these disciplinary proceedings are supported by competent substantial evidence and carry with them a presumption of correctness and should be upheld. <u>The Florida Bar v. Poe</u>, 662 So.2d 700 (Fla. 1995).

In as much as the Referee's findings are supported by competent substantial evidence, the reviewing Court is precluded from re-weighing the evidence and substituting its judgment for that of the Referee. <u>The Florida Bar v. Poe</u>, supra.; <u>The Florida</u> Bar v. Rue. 643 So.2d **1080** (Fla. 1994).

Furthermore, assuming a finding of guilt, the maximum penalty whi ch should have been mposed upon Kespondent would consist of a private reprimand.

During the course of twenty (20) years of practice in the State of Florida and another twelve (12) years of practice prior thereto in the State of New York, Respondent has been the subject. of a finding of guilt in a disciplinary proceeding only on one (1) occasion., which occurred some fourteen (14) years ago and which i nvolved a disputed fee.

Accordingly, there is clearly no pattern of conduct by this Respondent as contended by "The Florida Bar" in its initial brief.

This case is clearly unlike that in the case of The

Florida Bar v. Wasserman, 675 So.2d 103 (Fla. 1996) wherein the attorney was disciplined in two (2) separate cases for his personal behavior during the very course of a court proceeding and had been publicly reprimanded previously for charging an excessive Tee, failing Lo commonly handle a legal matter, failing to act with reasonable diligence and most importantly failing to promptly deliver funds and render a full accounting of funds to his clients,

Furthermore, in <u>Wasserman</u> the attorney in question had been publicly reprimanded and **placed** on probation for one (1) year for violating the Bar rules regulating trust accounts and had also been admonished prior thereto for failing to communicate diligently with opposing counsel, failing to protect his client's interest and engaging in conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice.

A private reprimand in **this cause**, should any sanctions at all be proper, would clearly be more than suff **i** clent **t o** protect the public, punish the accused attorney and deter other **like minded** attorneys. <u>The Florida Bar V. Dubbeld</u>, 594 **so**.2d 735 (Fla. 1992).

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE REFEREE'S FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS TN THIS DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDING ARE SUPPORTED BY COMPETENT SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD AND CARRY WTTT THEM A PRESUMPTION OF CORRECTNESS AND SHOULD BE UPHELD.

The task of "The Bar" in challenging the Referee's findings or conclusions in this disciplinary proceeding is to show that the record lacks any evidence to support the findings of Judge Angelos or her conclusions. <u>The Florida Bar v. Poe</u>, 662 So.2d 700 (Fla. 1995); The Florida Bar v. Rue, 643 So.2d **1080** (Fla. **1994**).

If the Referee's findings in disciplinary proceedings are supported by competent substantial evidence, the reviewing Court is precluded from reweighing the evidence and substituting its judgment for- that of the Referee. <u>The Florida Bar v. Poe,</u> supra.

"The Florida Bar" goes to great lengths in its initial brief in connection with its contention to the effect that the language used by Respondent following the deposition in question was intended to disparage, embarrass and humiliate Mr. Lanford, opposing counsel.

The diff i culty is that Mr. Lanfordhimself clear-ly testified both on direct and cross-examination at the time of the

hearing held before Judge Angelos as Referee on November-7, 1996 he had never said that he had been disparaged or humiliated or embarrassed for himself ('I' 54)but rather, that he was embarrassed for "Marlocci".

Further-more, when asked on cross-examination why if he had been embarrassed or humiliated he had had "Martocci" repeal. the word "a---" on three separate occasions, his somewhat flippant response was "I made a good recor-d, didn't I".

Furthermore, it is apparent from an examination of the Referee's report (RR 3) that the Referee accepted the hearing testimony of Respondent Lo the effect that when he had indicated that he had notused the words later attributed to him, he had intended to convey the fact that he had not utilized those words during the course of the deposition itself but rather at a time after the deposition had been concluded (T 101).

Additionally, the Referee clearly considered the circumstances which had occurred during the course of the proceedings underlying this grievance procedure wherein opposing counsel called "Mar tocci" a liar both before Judge Burk and at a time prior thereto (T 105-106).

Apparently Respondent's client refused to return the children to their father in the State of South Carolina fol lowing an agreed upon visitation by the children with her in the State

of Florida. "Martocci" asked her to return the children and explained to her what the consequences of her conduct might or might not be but had no knowledge that the children were not going to be returned until late Sunday evening; immediately t-hereafter on Monday morning, "Martocci" telephoned opposing counsel and; nformed him that the children were not going to be returned; a tthis point opposing counsel accused "Martocci" of conspiring in effect with his client to not return the children to their father in the State of South Carolina and called him a liar (T105-106),

Could not the Referee have concluded that: it. was partially this set of circumstances which had taken place within one (1) week prior to the deposition of Dr. Slade that had 1 cd to the bad feelings on the part of each counsel?

Finally, "The Bar" contends that the conduct of Respondent involved a pattern of offensive and disparaging behavior.

The difficulty with this argument lies in the fact that. "The Bar" itself has admitted that the only prior disciplinary proceeding of record against this Respondent leading Lo a finding of guilt on his part was some four-teen (14) years ago. Fur thermore, that matter some fourteen years ago involved a dispute concerning a fee arrangement. ('I' 134).

Finally, no one of the cases cited by "The Bar" in it:: initial brief is on point with regard to the facts in the case at bar.

In The Florida Bar v. Wasserman, 675 So.2d 103 (Fla. 1996), the attorney was disciplined in two (2) separate cases for his personal behavior during the very course of a court proceeding at which time he shouted criticisms at the judge, waived his arms and banged on the table. E'urthermore, after receiving an unfavorable response over the telephone from a judge's judicial assistant, the attorney called the assistant a little mother f---- and referred to the judge as a mother f---and a son of a b----.

Previously, that attorney had been publicly reprimanded for charging an excessive fee, failing to competently handle a 1 egal matter, failing to act with reasonable diligence and most importantly failing to promptly deliver funds and render a full accounting of funds to his client. Two years thereafter, said attorney was publicly reprimanded and placed on probation for one year for- viol atirig the Bar rules regulating trust accounts. Within another year, said attorney was admonished for failing to communicate diligently with opposing counsel, failing to protect his client's interests and engaging in conduct prejudici a I to the administration of justice.

In the case at bar-, Respondent did in fact refer Lo

opposing counsel **as** an "**A**----" but opposing counsel in fact denied feeling disparaged or humiliated by said conduct. Furthermore, Respondent in the case at bar has not been disciplined for some fourteen years, that fourteen year old disciplina **r**-**y** proceeding resulting **in a private** reprimand **arid** being the only finding of improper conduct on the part of Respondent during his twenty (20) years of practice in the State of Florida and twelve (12) years of practice prior- thereto in Lhe State of New York.

In the case of <u>The Florida Bar v. Adams</u>, 641 So.2d 399 (Fla. 1994), the attorney in question issued a letter accusing two (2) attorneys, a hospital and a doctor of suborning per-jury. In <u>Adams</u>, there was absolutely no factual. basis whatsoever upon which the Respondent-a t torney could have reasonably suspected the type of conduct contained in his accusations against the other <u>.ttorneys</u>, the hospital and the physician.

In the case at bar, it is clear that the tape recorder operated by the court reporter did not pick up the words "F--You". One would therefore reasonably question how the court reporter could have included those words in the transcript produced by her- without having been informed of the use by Respondent of those words by another person, obviously Mr. Lanford.

In The Florida Har v. Perlmutter, 582 So.2d 616 (Fla.

1991) the attorney in question apparently wrote letters to d i f f erent persons threatening them with multiple lawsuits, verball y attacking them and impugn i ng their motivation and standing in the community without just cause.

In The Florida Bar v. Dubbeld, 594 So.2d 735 (Fla. 1992) the attorney who had been disciplined with a public reprimand had been convicted for driving under- the influence of alcohol, had had his driver's license suspended and had left obscene or at least patently obscene messages on the answuring mach ine of a woman whom he believed had Lold his wife that he was having an extramarital affair-. Furthermore, the incidents giving rise to the complaint occurred apparently over a three (3) month period of time whereas in the case at bar the incident lasted only minutes if that and was obviously the result of an ongoing dispute between two (2) attorneys who had butted heads in a highly contested and emotional custody proceeding, counsel for the opposing party having called Respondent a liar and having accused Responden L of conspiring with his client in order to deprive the father of custody of the children, prior Lothe incident in question.

The findings and conclusions of the Referee are clearly supported by competent substantial evidence in the record and thus are presumed Lo be correct and should be upheld.

POINT TT

ASSUMING A FINDING OF GUILT, THE MAXIMUM PENALTY WIIICII SHOULD BE IMPOSED UPON RESPONDENT WOULD BE A PRIVATE REPRIMAND.

Assuming a finding of guilt, the maximum penalty which should he imposed upon Respondent for his conduct in the case at bar would consist of a private reprimand.

It would appear that this would satisfy the three (3) purposes of lawyer d i scipline which are the protection of the public, punishment of the accused attorney and deterrence of other like minded lawyers. <u>The Florida Bar v.</u> Dubbeld, 594 So.2d 735 (Fla. 1992).

In answering a question posed by counsel for "The Bar" with regard to the acceptability of the word "A--hole" Respondent would submit. that as he testified at the hearing of November 7, 1996 unfortunately that word as well as other words previously deemed to be offensive had slipped into the language.

It is not only "shockjocks" who use these words but rather persons in everyday confrontations with each other neluding attorneys.

If these words had been used by Respondent during the very course of a judicial proceeding, including; without limitation, a hearing or a deposition or similar procedures, then the words would be far less acceptable.

However, it is not at all uncommon for attorneys

following the course of a heated exchange and at a time after-the proceeding has terminated for them to engage in such conduct including the use of such language and in fact far worse.

Counsel for- "The Bar" speaks to an alleged loss of a degree of civility on the part of attorneys. Rather, an open eyed view of the world would clearly indicate that society itself has d i m i nished in civility over the last many years.

CONCLUSION

The findings and conclusions of the Referee are clearly supported by competent substantial evidence in the record and shou 1d be upheld.

Furthermore, assumingthere had been a finding of yuilt, the maximum penalty which should have been imposed upon Respondent for his conduct in the case at:. bar- would consist of a private reprimand.